
 

 
 

AGENDA 
On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of 
University City due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Due to the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the 
COVID-19 virus, those who are not fully vaccinated are asked to wear face coverings.   
 
A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
 
B. ROLL CALL  
 
 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 9, 2022 
 
 
E. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 

 
F. DEPARTMENT REPORT 

a. Tree Removal Contract-Monster 
b. Ash Removal Replacement Contract-Omni 
c. Misc. Tree Work Contract-Monster 
d. Tree Trimming Contract-Monster 
e. In House Crew 

 
 
G. COUNCIL LIAISON REPORT 
 
 
H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Sweetgum Trees 
b. Arbor Day Celebration Ideas 
c. Urban Forest Management Plan 
d. Position Appointments 

 
 
J. COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT  

 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE URBAN FORESTRY COMMISSION 
Centennial Commons 7210 Olive Blvd. 

Wednesday, March 8, 2023 
6:00 P.M. 

 
 

 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2019 Introduction I - 1 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
PURPOSE OF THE PLAN 
 

The City of University City’s Urban Forestry Management Plan (“Plan”) is a 30-year plan 
that provides a comprehensive strategic framework to focus and expand the City’s 
Urban Forestry program to meet a range of policy, educational and management goals. 
The Plan is intended as a tool to explore community concerns and management 
conflicts, while offering a series of implementation actions based on extensive 
stakeholder and community outreach.  
 
This Plan outlines the City of University City’s plan to integrate management of the 
many issues and opportunities posed by University City’s tree resource, and will serve 
as a road map to improve the City’s urban tree management and stewardship in a 
coordinated, cooperative approach with City departments, committee’s and private land 
owners. 
 
As a strategic and forward-looking document, this Plan does not alter or supersede the 
requirements of the University City Municipal Code, however, it does suggest 
modifications and expansions to City codes to improve long-term tree stewardship, and 
any proposed code revisions will be reviewed and considered through future public 
process. 
 
Lastly, the Plan was prepared through a systematic and comprehensive review of 
existing City regulations, standards and other adopted plans, and discussions with key 
stakeholders. This is a unique, holistic urban forestry management plan for the City of 
University City based on local needs and priorities, as determined through this process. 
 

 
WHAT IS THE URBAN FOREST? 
 

Stated simply, University City’s urban forest consists of all trees, woody shrubs and 
ground cover plant communities in the city on both public as well as private property, 
however, the primary scope of this plan is to focus on trees – the largest, longest-lived 
and more significant member of the landscape community.  This urban forest includes 
street trees, park trees, forested parklands, trees on institutional campuses, and trees in 
many private ownership settings. The urban forest touches the lives of University City’s 
citizens every day. Whether it’s enjoying a walk along the Millar park trail or a picnic in 
Heman Park, it is trees that comprise the urban forest and trees that make the 
experience magical. 

 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2019 Introduction I - 2 

 

WHY IS IT IMPORTANT? 

It is nearly impossible to overstate the value of trees in our urban areas. Properly placed 
trees reduce energy consumption, filter pollutants, and slow flooding. They stabilize soil, 
enhance the ecological environment, and increase property values. Urban trees also 
provide an invaluable psychological relief from the concrete and asphalt of the City. The 
value of these benefits is immeasurable. 
 
Water Quality & Stormwater Retention 
 
Urban forests absorb rainfall, control surface water run-off, filter ground water and assist 
in ground water recharge. According to one study, 37,500 tons of sediment per square 
mile per year comes off of developing and developed landscapes, and urban trees 
could reduce this value by 95%. 
 
Urban tree canopy significantly reduce flooding and soil erosion by slowing water runoff 
and holding on to soil. When raindrops are intercepted by a tree’s canopy, the rate at 
which the rainwater hits the ground is significantly reduced. The slowed rainwater 
absorbs into the soil as it filters across vegetation and roots, reducing the amount of 
water that reaches the creeks and storm sewers. In addition, soil movement is reduced 
as a result of plant roots holding on to the soil. Without plant roots, soil has no ability to 
resist the erosive effect of rushing water. 
 
Energy Savings & Carbon Capture 
 
Trees reduce the demand for energy consumption by casting shade and blocking winds. 
By shading concrete and asphalt, trees reduce the absorbed and radiated heat that 
turns our cities into urban heat islands. Trees shade cars and houses, keeping them 
cooler in the summer months.  And they block cold winter winds, allowing buildings and 
homes to remain warmer in the winter. These things reduce the demand for air 
conditioning or heating, which results in less energy being spent. Less energy 
expenditures mean fewer fossil fuels are burned and less carbon dioxide goes into the 
atmosphere, reducing the potential for global warming. Less global warming results in 
more stable temperatures and decreased demand for fossil fuel consumption. This 
cycle of energy conservation is perpetuated as trees and other urban plantings naturally 
reduce the demand for heating and cooling. The cycle is enhanced by carbon 
sequestering, because in addition to reducing the carbon emissions from energy 
consumption, trees sequester tremendous amounts of carbon from the atmosphere to 
carry out their process of photosynthesis. 
 
Air Quality Improvements 
 
Trees are beneficial as air filters as they absorb gaseous pollutants such as ozone, 
nitrogen oxides and sulfur dioxide; and they filter particulate matter such as dust, ash, 
pollen and smoke. Reductions in these pollutants results in improved public health and 
reduces the severity of ozone-induced asthmatic responses and other respiratory 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2019 Introduction I - 3 

illnesses. Urban trees absorb carbon dioxide, a major greenhouse gas, at an 
approximate rate of 230-lbs per year per tree. According to the U. S. Department of 
Agriculture, “one acre of forest absorbs six tons of carbon dioxide and puts out four tons 
of oxygen. This is enough to meet the annual needs of 18 people. 
 
The Economics of Aesthetics 
 
Improving aesthetics of our City has tangible economic benefits. Networks of natural 
areas and trails gives the City a reputation for being a good place to live and visit. 
Increased recreational and community activity attracts new businesses, fosters 
expressions of creativity and stimulates tourism. Due to the changing nature of business 
needs, businesses locate or re-locate based on a community’s quality of life, including 
an abundance of open space, nearby recreation and pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods. 
Nationwide, easy access to parks and open space has become a new measure of 
community wealth – an important way to attract businesses and residents by 
guaranteeing both quality of life and economic health. 
 
Aside from the potential price effect on residential property sales (3.7% - 7%), trees in 
retail settings increase shoppers’ willingness to pay for goods and services by 12%. 
Shoppers also indicate that they are willing to drive farther and stay longer if a retail 
district is well-landscaped with trees. Also, respondents consistently reported greater 
willingness-to-pay values for goods and services in the landscaped mall at an overall 
rate of 8.8%. 
 
Increases in land values or sale prices as a result of quality landscaping and the 
presence or retention of trees offers a secondary benefit to the local jurisdiction. The 
adjustments directly relate to additional revenue from sources such as real estate 
transfer taxes and property tax assessments. 
 
Wildlife & Habitat 
 
The urban forest, including the trees, canopy, understory, and woody and leaf debris, 
provides habitat, food and shelter for birds, insects, and other urban wildlife. If large, 
contiguous or linked, the urban forest provides a buffer from the built environment, while 
acting as a travel corridor, for wildlife. It also offers a critical environmental education 
resource for local students, bird watchers and nature enthusiast. While the urban forest 
provides an environmental structure for wildlife, challenges exist with providing and 
promoting native vegetation. “Urban sites rarely provide environmental and plant growth 
conditions found in the natural habitat. Increasingly advocacy for use of native plants in 
urban landscapes often overlooks the poor match between the plant material and the 
site”. While the challenging conditions of an urban setting may cause stress or growing 
problems for certain native plants, others may thrive. 
 
Health & Well-Being 
 
Public spaces with trees receive more visitors, increasing the frequency of casual social 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2019 Introduction I - 4 

interactions and strengthening the sense of community. Trees along transportation 
corridors narrow a driver’s field of vision, reducing traffic speeds and increasing 
pedestrian safety by providing a natural, physical barrier. Studies have found that urban 
highways lined with trees decrease driver stress, resulting in fewer incidents of road 
rage. 
 
Trees foster safer, more sociable neighborhood environments and have been shown to 
reduce levels of crime, including domestic violence. Views of nature reduce the stress 
response of both body and mind when stressors of urban conditions are present. 
Hospital patients with window views of trees recover significantly faster and with fewer 
complications than comparable patients without access to such views. 
 

Summary 
 
With all of the benefits trees and landscaping provide, it is easy to see the need to 
protect and expand the City’s urban forest. The City of University City recognizes the 
importance of green areas and is making direct efforts to insure the continued 
development of this invaluable resource. Steps the City has taken include aggressive 
planting, cyclical pruning, removal of hazardous trees and a complete digital inventory 
of all trees on City property. The city is also working towards providing educational 
opportunities for residents, and most importantly, enacting legislation which protects the 
existing urban forest and insures its continued expansion. This legislation allows 
University City to move forward, knowing a better City environment will be left to all 
those who follow. 
 
Keeping University City beautiful, reducing pollution and erosion, conserving energy, 
and providing a calm, peaceful environment will require continual team effort, but 
together the City and its constituents can make it happen. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Vision & Mission VM - 1 

 
 

VISION & MISSION 
 
VISION 
 
The City of University City embraces its urban forest as an integral part of the 
community’s infrastructure, which contributes to the healthy lifestyle of its residents; 
connects and enhances natural areas and habitat; provides ecological services, such as 
cleansing the region’s air, capturing stormwater and sequestering carbon; and 
contributions to the economic prosperity of the city. 
 
The Urban Forestry program is vibrant, robust, and held as a critical City service. The 
program draws strength from active, committed staff, committees, and volunteers.  
  
MISSION STATEMENT   

“To Enhance, Protect and Manage our Urban Forest” 

The University City Parks and Recreation Department’s urban Forestry Program strives 
to promote a safe, healthy, and diverse urban forest by preserving, managing, and 
enhancing tree resources, while promoting active community participation through 
public education and outreach. 

In cooperation with community residents and program stakeholders, the urban forestry 
program has outlined the following tenets to guide urban forestry management in 
University City: 

• Inform – Expand program awareness through innovative, visible outreach and 
education campaigns. 
 

• Protect – Recognize the environmental, economic, cultural, and social benefits 
offered by the urban forest and refine and implement policies to protect public 
tree resources, while seeking substantial participation from landowners to protect 
private trees. 

 

• Expand – Enable growth of public and private tree resources to optimize the 
urban tree canopy through plantings, outreach, and other incentives. 

 

• Manage – Improve and institutionalize the care, maintenance, and operating 
principles for the long-term viability of a mixed-aged, sustainable urban tree 
resource. 

 

• Partner – Increase community, private sector and other City department’s 
involvement in planning, management, and funding of the urban forest. 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2019 Goals & Objectives GO - 1 

 

GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Defining specific goals of the Plan will help guide development and prioritization of the 
broad range of actions necessary to achieve our vision of a sustainable urban forest in 
University City. The overarching goal of the Plan is to guide the city’s efforts to recover 
the loss of tree canopy and enhance all tree-related benefits by recommending 
strategies and actions to improve the city’s urban forest management in an equitable, 
economic, and sustainable manner. 
 

 
CANOPY COVERAGE  
 
A good measure of the health and value of an urban forest is the percentage of land 
within the city that has tree canopy cover. To measure success in canopy cover 
enhancement, canopy cover goals first must be established, which then will help the 
City of University City to rally the community around a clear set of common targets. 
These goals also help to plan implementation steps that consider planting opportunity, 
planting limitations and other priorities specific to individual land-use types. 
 
The City of University City currently has a canopy cover of approximately thirty-eight 
(38%) percent which is above the national average of twenty (25%) percent; St. Louis 
Regional average of thirty-three (33%) percent, but slightly below the U.S. Forest 
Service and City’s goal of forty (40%) percent. Although the canopy coverage is close to 
an acceptable level right now our urban forest has a high percentage of mature trees 
which are beginning to be removed and will need removal at a greater rate soon.   
 
To achieve an overall goal of 40% canopy cover in 30 years, goals have been defined 
for each of the tree elements of the plan. 
 
Tree Resources 
 

- Understand the characteristics and complexity of University City’s urban forest. 
- Maintain trees to promote health and longevity. 
- Maximize canopy cover and optimize age and species diversity. 
- Maximize the ecological and environmental benefits of the urban forest. 

 
Management Framework 
 

- Facilitate interdepartmental communication and cooperation to provide decision-
makers the information they need. 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2019 Goals & Objectives GO - 2 

- Develop and implement resource management tools. 
- Preserve and protect existing trees and encourage new tree planting throughout 

the city. 
- Model good stewardship in City practices. 

 
Community Framework 
 

- Enhance public awareness of the urban forest as a community resource. 
- Engage the community in active stewardship of the urban forest. 
- Promote citizen-government-business partnerships. 

 

Achieving these goals will result in the following outcomes: 
 

- Improved condition of the urban forest in terms of increased canopy, health, and 
diversity. 

- Increased ecological service benefits such as storm water mitigation benefits. 
- Clear policy framework to guide City actions. 
- Consistent approach to urban forest management and public outreach among 

City departments and committees. 
- Improved management and accountability within City government. 
- Equitable distribution of urban forest resources across the city. 
- Engaged and informed community. 

 

 
 RECOMMENDED GOALS OF THE PLAN 
 
Through public participation, input from the Urban Forestry Committee, University City 
in Bloom Committee, and City staff, considerable time and emphasis has been placed 
on developing a comprehensive vision. Accordingly, seven (7) major goals and 
objectives emerged at priorities for the City of University City. 
 
1. Preservation and Protection 

 
The City should continue to review and improve ordinances, guidelines, and policies 
regarding tree planting and tree and forest protection and create or enact new 
legislation and policies as needed. These policies will serve as an official statement 
by the City regarding the importance and value of trees in the community. 

 
2. Enhancement and Restoration 
 

University City’s canopy cover has been estimated at thirty-eight (38%) percent, and 
is disappearing in part, due to mature tree removal and lack of new and replacement 
tree planting on public and private properties. Without an adequate forest canopy 
cover, University City will not realize the many tangible and intangible benefits trees 
provide, and the character of the city will ultimately suffer. It is the City’s goal to 
achieve an average of forty (40%) percent canopy cover for the City. 

 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2019 Goals & Objectives GO - 3 

 
 
3. Expansion 
 

City should look at planting new trees, especially in areas such as streets lacking in 
right of way trees and parks.  Increased inter-departmental communications, such as 
Public Works sidewalk repair and replacement, will aid in expanding the tree 
population as well increase the overall health of the urban forest. Detailed 
information about nearby structures, utility conflicts, sidewalks and other 
hardscapes, clear zones and may other factors such as species diversity must be 
considered prior to planting to ensure the right tree is planted in the right place. 
 

4. Monitoring and Documentation 
 
Upkeep and expansion of the tree inventory is required to better understand and 
plan appropriate management of the urban forest. The City shall track the trees that 
are planted or removed on public properties will ensure the forest assessment and 
urban canopy calculation stays reasonably up to date and can help analyze 
expected changes to overall forest age, diversity, and health. Records of tree work 
can alert staff and the public how forest management efforts are paying off over 
time, and if adjustments to the rate, direction, or priorities of forest management are 
still on track with community goals. Noting the presence of disease or pests with 
early detection can be critical in containing threats to the overall forest. It is vital to 
monitor both the forest and the plan over time if the goals are to be met in a 
responsible manner. 
 

5. Education and Outreach 
 

A focused, extensive campaign is required to improve awareness of the program 
and reach new volunteers. Citizens, businesses, City staff and leaders, and 
developers need continued education and marketing targeted to increase their 
awareness of the benefits of trees. They need to be aware of the availability of City 
resources and the various ways they can become more involved in the urban forest 
management program and be a part of the solution.  

 
6. Sustainability and Maintenance 

 
This initiative relies on on-going, expanded coordination for the planning, care, and 
replacement of City trees. Specific attention should be directed toward tree-induced 
street/sidewalk infrastructure damage, systematic pruning of trees, along with 
elevating the role planting/re-planting projects in parks and other City-owned 
property and rights-of-way to improve wildlife habitat, canopy, species diversity and 
age diversity. 
 
 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2019 Goals & Objectives GO - 4 

 
7. Organizational Development and Funding. 
 

Currently, the components of and resources for University City’s urban forest 
management program are under the Parks and Recreation department as it pertains 
to trees maintained by the city. The portion of the urban forest that exists on private 
land is maintained by private landowners, St. Louis County Department of 
Transportation, and the city’s Planning and Development Department. Critical to the 
program’s success is adequate funding, a centralized focus and improved 
interdepartmental coordination and communication. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Our Urban Forest OUF - 1 

 

OUR URBAN FOREST 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
University City’s urban forest covers 5.8 square miles of publicly and privately-owned 
land within the city limits. The obvious differences between urban spaces, streetscapes, 
parklands, remnant forests and other land-use types create a collection of management 
units that together form University City’s urban forest ecosystem.  
 
The following are the four management units for the Urban Forestry Management Plan: 
 

1. Street trees along non-county roads and medians 
2. Public parks 
3. The Loop in University City 
4. Street trees along county road and medians 

 

 
1. STREET TREES ALONG NON-COUNTY RAODS AND MEDIANS 
 

This element of the city’s urban forest is found on streets and medians that are 
maintained by the city itself. The trees are all located within the city’s right of way in 
front of homes and businesses. In most of the city this area is located within the area 
between the street and the sidewalk. In areas without sidewalks the right of way is 
generally 5-8 feet in from the street. Each street can have a different right of way 
width, but the city-maintained trees can be easily identified because they are planted 
in uniform rows.  

 
Current Condition 

 
Street trees along non-county roads make up approximately 75% of the city’s tree 
inventory. This population of trees ranges from mature to juvenile trees with the 
majority of them being mature and approaching their life expectancy. 
 
Some streets are fully stocked with street trees while others are lacking due to 
removing older trees and residents not requesting to have new trees planted.  

 
Issues/Opportunities 

 
- Since street trees make up most of the managed trees in the city’s urban forest, 

they provide the most opportunity to expand the overall canopy. The goal of the 
urban forestry program is to replace every tree that is removed within the street 
tree management unit of the urban forest. 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Our Urban Forest OUF - 2 

- The management of street trees provides an excellent opportunity to beautify the 
city.  

- Trees in front of homes have been proven to increase property values for 
residential homes. Therefore by maintaining a healthy street tree population the 
city can put value back into the community.  

 
- One issue facing street tree management would be the annual management 

cost. Whether maintained by an outside contractor or in-house staff these street 
trees must be pruned on a cyclical basis and removed when necessary.  
 

- Another issue faced when managing street trees is the publics view on trees in 
front of their homes. Some resident’s views on trees have been soured through 
past life experiences or yearly maintenance such as raking leaves in the fall. It is 
important to the overall health of the city’s urban forest to educate the public on 
the importance of trees in the urban landscape.  
 

- The issue of liability with street trees is a constant management issue due to the 
risk posed by trees around people. Trees can fail during storm events and cause 
damage to private property. The widely accepted Tree Risk Assessment method 
developed by the International Society of Arborist is implemented to identify 
hazardous trees before they cause damage to people or property.  

 
 

 
2. PUBLIC PARKS 
 

Public parks in University City are a pride of the community. We have 20 maintained 
parks in the city as well as woodland hiking trail. Within public parks the city has 
approximately 3,000 trees ranging from mature to juvenile in age.  

 
Current Condition 

 
Generally speaking, trees in the parks are in better condition than street trees due to 
the more favorable growing conditions. Parks trees require less routine maintenance 
than trees in right of way areas.  

 
Issues/Opportunities 

 
- Park trees provide many benefits to the residents of University City whether they 

are aesthetic beauty, shade, or improved mental wellbeing.  
 

- Park trees do pose a liability risk due to the public recreating around them. The 
Tree Risk Assessment method is also used for park trees. 

 

 
3. THE LOOP IN UNIVERSITY CITY 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Our Urban Forest OUF - 3 

This category includes University City’s business district known as The Loop. The 
Loop is comprised of businesses and restaurants. The Loop is a staple for University 
City and is well known throughout the St. Louis area. The trees located on the loop 
are all planted in tree pits in front of businesses and are maintained by city staff. 

 
Current Condition 

 
The Loop Trees are inventoried with the street trees mentioned earlier in this 
section. The Loop trees are planted in the most unfavorable growing conditions in 
the city known as “tree pits”. These unfavorable growing conditions result in shorter 
life expectancy for the trees. Currently these trees are juvenile to mature in age.  

 
Issues/Opportunities 

 
- The opportunity for the Loop trees to make a visual impact on pedestrians and 

people driving through is dependent on the health, age, and selection of trees in 
this area.  

 
- The issue of the growing conditions of these trees resulting in shorter lived trees 

could be improved by adding in more root space under the sidewalk and adding 
irrigation to the tree pits.  
 

- Tree pits and growing stock are not uniform in The Loop and could greatly benefit 
from an overall uniform look and management approach.  

 

 
4. STREET TREES ALONG COUNTY ROADS AND MEDIANS 
 

Trees along county roads such as Delmar, Midland, Hanley, and North and South 
are not maintained by the city but rather by St. Louis County Department of 
Transportation. 
  
Current Condition 

 
Inventory doesn’t currently exist for this category. The trees in this category are all 
mature trees and are approaching their life expectancy. St. Louis County is not 
replacing any trees in this area.  

 
Issues/Opportunities 

 
- With these areas making up a large portion of the city used by residents and non-

residents alike they have a large impact on the overall view of the city from an 
aesthetic point of view.  

 
- With the number of mature trees on county roads and the rate at which they are 

being removed and not replanted the city’s main corridors will look very different 
in the future. 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Our Urban Forest OUF - 4 

 
- The city does have an opportunity as well as an issue with the option to take 

responsibility of these trees from the county government. This would ensure the 
proper management of the trees as well as improve the overall tree canopy in the 
city. This would keep the same charm and character that is important to the city 
of University City and its residents. With that being said, it would also increase 
the budget requirement for the Forestry Division.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014  Inventory and Assessment IA - 1 

 

INVENTORY & ASSESSMENT  
 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
A comprehensive resource management plan must begin with a thorough 
understanding of the resource itself. This is accomplished through an inventory and 
assessment process. This process identifies the current state or condition of the 
resource and highlights both challenges and opportunities for future resource 
management.  
 
Accordingly, the Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Department contracted with the Davey 
Resource Group to conduct an inventory and assessment of 11,895 (98.1% trees and 
1.9% stumps) trees and stumps in tree lawns and all parks in University City. This 
inventory was partially funded through Missouri Department of Conservation’s grant 
program. Tree data was collected and analyzed, providing information on the species 
composition, relative size (DBH), health, and maintenance recommendations for the 
urban forest.  
 
 

 
SPECIES COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY 
 
The science of arboriculture and urban forestry has changed drastically since the City of 
University City’s urban forest canopy was originally established.  Urban foresters were 
not aware of the potential detriment of a monoculture of species or the importance and 
benefits of age diversity. Urban foresters have also learned that routine maintenance is 
essential to maintaining vigor and vitality in the development and enhancement of the 
urban forest. 
 
While the U.S. Forest Service suggests cities should have no less than forty (40%) 
percent canopy cover, our urban forest consists of nine (38.2%) percent of tree canopy 
coverage. Renewal and maintenance is necessary to preserve and expand its beauty 
and benefits to our community. In addition to maintaining the goal of at least forty (40%) 
percent canopy cover, there are two (2) key elements to preserving and enhancing the 
canopy: age diversity and species diversity.  
 
Age Diversity 
 
A healthy canopy is a lot like a healthy community, it benefits from trees of all ages just 
as a community benefits from having residents of all ages. If a balance between 
removals and replacements continues as the dying and declining trees are removed the 
City will move toward having a well age diversified urban forest within ten years. 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014  Inventory and Assessment IA - 2 

 
Species Diversity 
 
It is highly recommended that the City continue planting different species to increase its 
overall diversity, as urban forests compete with many other human needs in a built 
environment, such as buildings, homes, sidewalks, roads, size of tree lawns, and utility 
facilities. Species composition takes generations to change considering the lifespan of 
trees. It is important to mention that previous City Foresters have done a good job of 
planting a diverse selection of species. While we do still have an overabundance of a 
few species including Pin Oak as these trees are removed and replaced with a diverse 
panting stock species composition will continue to trend in the right direction. It is 
important to put “the right tree in the right place” or the tree will either fail to 
thrive or create a myriad of side-effects that will be costly and detrimental to 
human habitation. In our urban environment, we must choose to diversity rather than 
chancing devastation and deforestation as a result of a species monoculture. 
Maintaining healthy trees and planting different species are key aspects of preventing 
forest devastation. 
 
The U. S. Forest Service recommends the urban forest be comprised of mostly species 
native to the region focusing on age, size, and species diversity. Research has proven 
to avoid a monoculture; the urban forest should have a diverse composition having no 
one species comprising more than ten (10%) percent and no one genus comprising 
more than twenty (20%) percent of the planting population.  This breakdown has been 
argued to be not strict enough for the amount of invasive pest and common pathogens 
found in the urban landscape. Some argue that the goal should be changed to no more 
than five (5%) percent of one genus and ten (10%) percent one species. Species 
diversity, wood type, wind resistance, and insect/disease resistance should be highly 
considered. 
 
The overall Inventoried tree population in 2022 was comprised of one hundred and sixty 
two (162) species representing seventy one (71) genera:  
 

• Quercus(Oak) = 21.3% 
o Quercus palustris(Pin Oak)=14.7% 

• Acer(Maple) = 12.1% 

• Platanus(Sycamore) = 3.6% 

• Tilia(Linden) = 3% 

• Liquidambar(Sweetgum) = 2.9% 

• Fraxinus(Ash) = 2.6% 
 
As depicted above, only the Oak and Maple genera exceed the industry standard of 
10% of the total trees inventoried within the urban forest, which is recommended to 
reduce the chance of exotic diseases or insects devastating the forest. The Oak genus 
is made up of 19 different species, but Pin Oak makes up 14.7% of all of the trees in our 
urban forest. Such problems have occurred in many communities with the loss of 
millions of American Elms and currently exist with the infestation of the Emerald Ash 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014  Inventory and Assessment IA - 3 

Borer (EAB) attacking Ash trees, where over 25 million Ash trees have died in recent 
years. The City of University City is not immune to these types of devastations; in fact 
urban trees are more susceptible to disease than those in a natural, undisturbed 
environment. 
 
Size Class Distribution 
 
Tree species have different life spans and mature at different diameters, heights, and 
crown spreads. This means that actual tree ages cannot be assumed from the 
diameters of trees. However, general classifications of size, such as small, medium, and 
large, can be used to describe the general characteristics of the urban forest. This is not 
a substitute for age classes, which can give the actual age and maturity of trees, but it 
can provide a general idea of the variability in University City’s tree population. 
 
Of the total inventory, 29.69% = Small Trees, 25.04% = Medium Trees, and 45.26% = 
Large Trees. Small trees for the purpose of this management plan are considered to be 
8 inches diameter and under, medium trees are from 9-18 inches in diameter, and large 
trees are over 19 inches in diameter. Therefore, University City has an uneven 
distribution of trees with the majority in the large category, as determined by their 
diameter class. The large distribution of larger trees is sign that we have an uneven 
aged forest. While larger trees provide more economical benefits they reach a point 
where they have reached their life expectancy and begin to decline. This life expectancy 
is greatly reduced from the same tree outside of the urban environment.  
 
Normal recommendations in urban forest management call for achieving, over time, an 
appropriate age mixture by removing and replanting a certain percentage of trees each 
year. A good ratio for an urban tree population is a 20/60/20 mix of small, medium and 
large trees, reflecting the percentage of trees in each size group and representing a 
uniform spread of tree ages from young to mature to over mature. 
 

 
PRIORITY TREE MAINTENANCE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
When maintaining urban trees, it must be realized that the potential for loss is an 
important factor in prioritizing treatments and making effective use of available funds. 
Monitoring the condition of significant trees and making efforts to maintain their health is 
essential. The loss of trees over time is an inevitable natural process. However, to 
control the decline, removal, and replacement of trees in a timely and cost-effective 
manner is the goal of the management process. 
 
The highest priority maintenance recommendations that were identified in 2022 
primarily pertained to protecting public safety. All pruning and removal maintenance 
recommendations were based on the existence of potential safety risks to the citizens of 
University City and/or their property. 
 
 
Tree Removals 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014  Inventory and Assessment IA - 4 

 
Trees fail from natural causes, such as disease, pests, and weather conditions, and 
from physical injury due to vehicles, vandalism, poisoning, and root disturbances, 
among others. Trees recommended for removal in the 2022 inventory assessment were 
those that were potential safety risks or were in such poor condition that they were likely 
to fail or die within the next few years. Of the total trees inventoried, 270 or 2.2% of the 
inventoried trees were recommended for removal.  
 
Priority Pruning 
 
Priority pruning consists of the removal of dead, dying, weak, or otherwise hazardous 
branches on the main trunks, as well as those within the canopy area of trees. A tree 
recommended for Priority Pruning has a risk rating of moderate to high risk, based on a 
tree risk assessment, associated with the defective branch or tree part. Pruning of these 
trees should reduce the risk to an acceptable level. 270 or 2.2% of the inventoried trees 
in University City were current candidates for Priority Pruning. 
 
Routine and Training Pruning 
 
Routine Pruning consists of the removal of dead, dying, diseased, interfering, 
objectionable, and weak branches on the main trunks, as well as those within the 
canopy area of trees. 2106 or 17.7% of the inventoried trees in University City were 
candidates for Routine Pruning. A systematic routine pruning cycle of all public trees 
was implemented to decrease the occurrence of potentially dangerous broken branches 
and large deadwood. 
 
Trees requiring routine pruning generally do not present a moderate to high risk as 
defined by a tree risk assessment. This will allow the City to budget and schedule most 
of its tree maintenance projects in a cost-efficient and timely manner. 
 

 
SWOT ANALYSIS 
 
A Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) assessment was also 
completed as a means to organize input and comments provided by the program 
affiliates and stakeholders, committees and City staff. The lists that follow off a 
synthesis of the range of insights, perspectives and opinions regarding the current and 
future state of the University City Urban Forestry program; this information has helped 
inform the development of the program goals, objectives and specific action steps in this 
Plan. Please note that it is common for a specific issue to be identified in multiple, even 
contradictory, sections of the SWOT matrix because different perspectives yield 
different perceptions. 
 
STRENGTHS 
 

• Technically trained and competent staff. 

• Program linked with the Urban Forestry Committee and the Parks and 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014  Inventory and Assessment IA - 5 

Recreation Committee – Council-appointed committee’s assisting the program 
and advocating on its behalf. 

• Program can rely, in part, on the previously completed and adopted inventory 
and analysis. 

• Program can rely, in part, on existing regulations. 

• City has been designated a “Tree City USA” for nine (40) consecutive years 

• Parks and Recreation Department has received several grants. 

• Urban Forestry program has implemented available brochures, handouts, etc. 
about tree planting, care, maintenance, etc. 

• Strong and engaged group of local master gardeners and members of the 
garden club who care about the City and the role of trees. 

• Strong young to mature tree diversity achieved by previous city foresters. 

• Increased budget for contract services. 
 

 
WEAKNESSES 
 

• Limited staff resources to meet the demands of program objectives, citizen 
communication and outside requests. 

• Limited funding for program, with current budget tied to the General Fund. 

• Public has limited awareness of and exposure to the Urban Forestry program, 
along with its functions, purpose or goals. 

• Rudimentary information posted on program website; limited web presence. 

• Due to demands on staff, there is limited enforcement/oversight of existing 
regulations; Program is largely complaint-driven. 

• The topping of trees by private land owners. 

• Deferred maintenance, such as pruning and replacement, at City-owned sites. 

• Fragmented philosophies and communication between the varying 
committees/staff/residents. 

• Over mature trees of the same species beginning to decline at a rapid rate 

• Lack of enforcement of current ordinances 

• Limited staff 
 

 
OPPORTUNITIES 
 

• University City is a diverse community with a range of groups/associations willing 
to help; Passionate, active citizenry. 

• The City can lead through example, create Program momentum and set 
standards for tree care and maintenance. 

• Coordination, communication and training can be improved to address 
consistency and enhance problem-solving and collaboration. 

• Outside funding sources, such as federal, state, and private foundation grants, 
corporate sponsorships and donations may be available in limited fashion for 
urban forestry uses. 

• Potential to develop street tree planting plan of trees along major corridors and 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014  Inventory and Assessment IA - 6 

subdivisions. 

• Potential to develop tree planting plan of trees within existing parks, public 
facilities, and rights-of-way. 

• Planting of trees to control species and age diversity, and increase canopy 
coverage. 

• Hire more staff to better address urgent pruning, removal, and planting needs. 

• Educate city staff involved in enforcing tree ordinance. 

• Maintain and update tree inventory to create an accurate picture of state or the 
urban tree canopy. 

• Strengthen permit application process as it relates to public and private trees.  
 
THREATS 
 

• Vast number of committees and special groups competing for limited resources 
may fragment and cause loss of focus of Program objectives. 

• Positions being cut and not re-hired. 

• Inflationary staff and equipment cost increases may affect the pace at which the 
Program expands to meet program objectives and/or manages operational and 
administrative challenges. 

• Past budget shortfalls have led to deferred maintenance, such as pruning and 
replacement, at City-owned sites. 

• General sense of tax fatigue may require creative solutions and strategies for 
long-term funding. 

• Changing maintenance and care practices of private landowners over time – less 
watering and pruning. 

• Even-age and same-species tree stands may fail or decline at same time 
creating a substantial maintenance and operations burden. 

• Unpruned young trees may become future City liability if structural pruning not 
addressed soon. 

• The sense of Program accomplishment might wane due to the long timeframe 
needed to achieve the stated goal of increased canopy. 

• The potential of new pest/invasive breakouts requiring coordination with State 
and untested response protocols. 

• Illegal, unwarranted and/or inappropriate removals and pruning on private lands. 
 
 

Through the SWOT analysis, a wide range of issues and opportunities surfaced, and 
the significant findings can be summarized as follows:  
 

The Program is led by a capable, technically-competent and energetic staff, whose 
focus is limited by a wide scope of program responsibilities. Residents of University 
City can offer a wealth of insight, support and energy to renew and expand the 
program, while acting as a conduit to connect with their neighbors and friends about 
the importance, and proper care, of the urban forest. The Program can rely on 
existing ordinances as a framework for managing the urban forest, but revisions, 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014  Inventory and Assessment IA - 7 

clarifications and expansions to ordinance language should be considered, while 
balancing concerns regarding the over-regulation of private lands. 

 
 
While uncertainty exists over future funding levels, the apparent public passion for trees 
is favorable to the successful implementation of this Plan. Focused and strenuous 
marketing and community outreach efforts must be made to connect with and educate 
private property owners of the value in managing their tree resources and to heighten 
the level of awareness of and care for the urban forest. This commitment to education 
and outreach must become a central tenet of future efforts and for any growth of the 
Urban Forestry program, and the placement of this theme as the leading element of the 
following Program Goals and Objectives further strengthens it importance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Maintenance Operations MO - 1 

 

MAINTENANCE OPERATIONS 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Urban trees typically require maintenance. A comprehensive mature tree care program 
primarily centers on routine or preventive pruning, and the ability to provide fertilization, 
irrigation, insect and disease control, and cabling, and bracing when necessary. The 
goals are to promote health, provide safe and functioning public spaces, and maximize 
the environmental, social, and economic benefits of trees and understory. 
 
Tree maintenance tasks and frequency vary depending on age, species, establishment, 
and site characteristics. Generally, the first three years of a tree’s life, also known as the 
plant establishment period, are the most maintenance intensive. Establishment requires 
attention to tree selection, site preparation, planting, watering, staking, pruning, and 
mulching to assure their survival. Pruning, disease and insect management are critical 
throughout a tree’s life. 
 
The benefits and values of trees are maximized when trees reach maturity and become 
established in their growing location. To maintain this high level of benefits for a longer 
period, the City should commit to providing regular scheduled maintenance to its mature 
trees and prepare for non-routine arboriculture treatments as needed. 
 
Routine Pruning Program 
 
Routine Pruning should occur on a cyclical basis for the entire tree population once all 
priority maintenance removal and pruning activities have been completed. This activity 
is extremely beneficial for the overall health and longevity of all public trees. Through 
routine pruning, potentially serious problems can be avoided because the trees can be 
closely inspected during these pruning cycles. Proper decisions can be made on 
declining trees, and any trees that become potential hazards can be managed 
appropriately before any serious incidents occur. The Parks, Recreation, and Forestry 
Department has developed an organized, documented approach to cyclical tree 
maintenance that can be managed by City staff. 
 
Fertilization 
 
Mature trees should not be placed on a scheduled fertilization program without a 
documented need. If soil analyses show a distinct and serious nutrient deficiency, or if 
the tree’s root system or growing area has been damaged or contaminated, then the 
time and expense of fertilization may be worthwhile to save the tree. 
 
The City Forester can use their expertise to determine if and when public trees need 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Maintenance Operations MO - 2 

fertilization and the appropriate fertilizer formulation and delivery method. 
 
Irrigation 
 
All trees need supplemental watering when there are drought conditions. Under drought 
conditions, the City, volunteers, and/or the abutting property owner would accomplish 
watering mature and young trees. This supplemental irrigation can be accomplished for 
trees with a water truck and hose and/or deep root watering lance, or with watering aids, 
such as a tree gator or tree diapers. Citizens and abutting business owners should be 
encouraged to water street trees frequently during the summer, even when there are 
not drought conditions. 
 
Insect and Disease Control 
 
Generally, mature trees do not have significant insect and disease problems if they are 
healthy and well-cared for. Some degree of insect infestation and disease incidence will 
always be present, as this is the norm for the natural world. However, trees in street and 
other highly urbanized settings can be predisposed to insect and disease problems 
since they are growing in unnatural and constrained environments. Therefore, it is 
prudent to include insect and disease monitoring as a routine part of the tree inspection 
program. 
 
Emergency Response 
 
An integral part of urban forest management must include an established procedure for 
emergency response. Individual tree-related emergencies, such as tree failures and 
large limb failures, are usually isolated events that can be effectively handled by having 
an emergency protocol for hazardous trees. 
 
For large-scale storm events that result in substantial amounts of damage and debris 
from trees, a formal tree emergency protocol should be in place, outlining emergency 
response steps, safety standards, debris removal plans, public communication means, 
and contact lists. 
 
Maintenance of Private Trees 
 
While the City of University City does have some influence on preserving trees on 
private property, ensuring that private citizens know what appropriate tree maintenance 
is can be a challenge as evidenced by the all too frequent topping practice still 
employed by some tree maintenance firms.  Encouraging private citizens to preserve 
trees can also be a challenge given concerns with leaf drop, views, solar access, 
competing uses of space, and the cost of hiring professional tree care workers. 
Likewise, encouraging private homeowners to plant more trees can be a challenge for 
the same reasons. 
 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Maintenance Operations MO - 3 

Standards of Practice 
 
City staff and their contractors follow industry standards as defined in the International 
Society of Arboriculture’s (ISA) Tree Pruning Guidelines and/or those in the ANSI A300 
pruning standards. It is suggested that City tree-crew personnel be trained, tested, and 
that the City Forester be an I.S.A. “Certified Arborist”. 
 

 
TREE PLANTING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Considering the ongoing land development and the City’s goal to increase canopy 
cover, tree planting should be a major goal for the City. Not considering private 
property, the streets, parks and other public areas offer ample opportunities for new tree 
planting. Therefore, it is important to make sure this goal is carried out in the most 
effective way possible. The trees planted now will have a great impact on the City’s 
future character and livability. 
 
Given the ambitious goal of increasing the City’s canopy cover, it is imperative that the 
Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Department develop a Master Planting Plan. Such a 
plan would detail the exact location of every available public tree/plant planting site 
within the City, provide information of the size and type of the growing space, indicate 
the presence of utilities, and ultimately assign an appropriate species to that site. This 
information is tied into the overall tree inventory. 
 

Trees and Climate Change 
 
The debate may still be underway regarding how human actions may influence and 
impact the scope and timing of potential global warming and companion climate 
change. However, one thing we do know with greater certainty is that many plant 
species do not require a substantial change in their environmental conditions to be 
greatly affected. It is entirely possible that the species composition of University City’s 
urban forest in the future will include species that we currently do not or cannot grow. 
Urban foresters, landscape architects, horticulturalists, and park planners will need to 
be particularly attentive to changes and trends in the environment that may require them 
to make adjustments to our planting palettes. As well, changes in climate may also 
make it easier for invasive non-native species, flora and fauna, to find a new home to 
the detriment of our indigenous species. 
 
Invasive Species 
 
All natural systems change over time. If we want these changes to enhance the urban 
forest, they must be actively managed. Nationally-based studies repeatedly support the 
fact that the resource deteriorates when human intervention is not a proactive part of 
the urban forest management. This decline can be seen in many of University City’s 
parks and natural areas where invasive species have taken over and are preventing 
native species from growing because historically these areas were considered “natural” 
and did not require maintenance. Proactive management is needed to keep our trees 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Maintenance Operations MO - 4 

sustainable and in balance with other urban priorities. 
 
Over the years many trees and shrub/ground cover species have been introduced to the 
University City region only to see them become invasive, threatening the native species. 
Shrubs and ground covers such as burning bush and Wintercreeper, and other 
invasives like Japanese hops, garlic mustard, and bush honeysuckle threaten our forest 
floors and riparian corridors. Not only should we avoid planting these species, we 
should also support programs that will remove these invasive plants over time. 
 
Trees and Views 
 
Private views, or the potential for private views, often include publicly-owned trees. For 
some, there is value in seeing distant panoramas and for others their view out to the 
street is an important value that contributes to quality of life. For many, neighboring 
trees either frame a “territorial” view or are the view. Views are subjective and are 
defined by changing landscapes that often involve other property ownership. 
 
Currently City of University City policy on trees, clearly states that public trees can’t be 
topped. However, the City policy is to permit view relief only if it can be accomplished 
through pruning that meets the City of University City’s arboricultural standards, and is 
performed by certified arboricultural contractors under the direction of the City Forester. 
 
TOOLS FOR INVENTORY AND ASSESSMENT 
 
A common requirement for all resource managers is a thorough understanding of the 
resource itself. To that end, University City has implemented an overall street and park 
tree inventory that is managed digitally. This tool is critical in providing the following 
benefits:  
 

1. Tree risk assessment and inventory. 
2. Better maintenance records with records linked to inventory data. 
3. Better tools/models for determining value and benefits of the urban forest. 

 
As previously stated, having a good understanding of the resource and its condition is 
always the first requirement of good resource management. In addition, detailed 
information on resources expended for maintenance would help staff better plan and 
budget work. The ability to assign value to the benefits of the forest would aid in 
creating a business case for valuing green infrastructure in the same way the City 
considers the capital investment and maintenance needs of its engineered 
infrastructure. In turn, this could lead to creative mechanisms for funding appropriate 
levels of maintenance of the urban forest resource. 
 
Tree Risk Assessment and Inventory 
 
Through both the inventory and ongoing maintenance process, a Tree Risk Assessment 
has been completed of all Public trees within the City and should be updated every 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Maintenance Operations MO - 5 

three to five years.  The following levels of assessment should be used. 
 

1. Level 1 (Limited Visual) assessment shall be made by City personnel on a 
routine basis. This is a rapid assessment (drive-by) looking for trees with serious 
defects.  
 

2. Level 2 (Basic) Visual inspection (360 degree) of the crown, trunk, and exposed 
roots from all sides shall be made by City personnel if deemed necessary after 
performing a Level 1 assessment. 
 

3. Level 3 (Advanced) assessment should be made by the City Forester as deemed 
necessary.  A close look for defect conditions (loads, root rot, trunk decay, 
problems in the crown or other factors that require specialized training or 
equipment). A level 3 assessment indicates that specialty tools such as a 
resistograph or an aerial inspection has been completed.  
 
The City Forester further needs to assess the likelihood of failure (Defects, loads, 
response growth etc.) by rating the likelihood of failure as  
1) Improbable; 2) Possible; 3) Probable; and Imminent. He shall also assess the 
likelihood of impacting a target (Occupancy rate, and target protection area) by 
rating the likelihood of impact as 1) Very low; 2) Low, 3) Medium; and 4) High. 
 
He then shall assess the overall risk level by rating the risk as 1) Extreme;  
2) High Risk; 3) Moderate; or 4) Low Risk by using the matrix defined by The 
International Society of Arborist using likelihood of failure and likelihood of 
impacting a target. 

 
Maintaining the Tree Inventory 
 
The City’s inventory should be updated on a regular basis to reflect new plantings, 
removals, and maintenance procedures performed. An accurate inventory is the best 
way for the City to monitor the progress and cost-efficiency of its tree care operations. 
The primary benefit of an accurate tree inventory is that the community can budget, 
plan, and anticipate tree-related problems and situation in the most cost-effective 
manner possible. 
 
The best way to maintain the inventory is to commit to regular, routine data entry. The 
urban forestry staff has created a form for use in the field that contains similar data as 
the software program. This form is to be used to record new plantings, work histories, 
changes in tree conditions, and maintenance recommendations. On a daily, weekly, or 
monthly basis, the information collected should be entered into the inventory database. 
 
 
It is further recommended that a thorough inventory be performed every five years or 
more frequently if rapid changes in the urban forest occur, such as severe storms, 
serious insect and disease problems, or a dramatic increase in new tree planting. 
 



City of University City, Missouri Urban Forestry Management Plan 

 

2014 Maintenance Operations MO - 6 

 
TREE RESOURCE ASSESSMENT 
 
The urban forest can be evaluated using many factors, including extent of tree canopy, 
species diversity, age, and health of trees. University City’s canopy cover is around nine 
(38.2%) percent. Shrinking canopy cover necessarily has the companion effect of 
reducing the value of environmental and ecological services of the urban forest. These 
facts underpin the importance of preserving University City’s existing trees. 
 
Urban trees are under pressures not present in native forests and require active 
management intervention to sustain them. Urban trees lack some of the natural buffers 
and protection found in wild lands. In native forest, the correct combination of soil micro-
organisms, understory plants, and ample seed source, number of trees and variance in 
topography, and stable hydrology all contribute to impede or stop extensive destruction 
due to diseases, insects, and invasive plants. 
 
Tree selection in the urban environment is usually driven by site conditions that have 
been shaped by previous development and current land use much more so than to the 
natural conditions that sustain native forests. 
 
Sites within the City that are well suited to the protection, planting and long-term 
management of native species common to our native forests are important to identify 
and to preserve. 
 
Sites that have been significantly altered and constrained by development provide 
uniquely challenging opportunities for protection, planting, and long-term management 
of species biologically adapted-either by nature or by the horticultural industry- to thrive 
under the conditions presented. 
 
Forest are not static, native forests undergo change through succession, and urban 
forests undergo change in reaction to impacts by humans with species selection 
requiring ongoing adaptation to optimize the potential of the site. Factors to consider 
beyond the visually obvious (size, shape, and aesthetic appeal) include: 
 

• Horticultural requirements for drainage, soil conditions and solar exposure. 

• Community interests and priorities. 

• Habitat value for urban wildlife. 

• Size of available space and location of buildings, paved surfaces and utilities. 
 

Other pressures on trees in the urban environment are form development. These 
threats include land clearing to accommodate growth and views and tree removal to 
reduce conflicts between trees, power lines, and street signs and to provide sight lines 
along roadways. 















































































 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

URBAN FORESTRY COMMISSION 
UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2022 
 

Agenda Item A:  Call Meeting to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
Agenda Item B:  Roll Call 
Those in attendance included Commission President Kristin Sobatka, Vice President Aaron Bitzer, 
Secretary Kathy Freese and Commission Members Dianne Benjamin and Dana Barhard. Also in 
attendance was Council Liaison Aleta Klein and Forestry Supervisor Jacob Kaiser.  
 
Agenda Item C:  Approval of Agenda 
Commission Vice President Aaron Bitzer motioned and Commission Member Benjamin seconded to 
accept the Agenda. The motion was approved unanimously.    
  
Agenda Item D:  Approval of Minutes 
Commission Vice President Aaron Bitzer made a motion to approve the minutes from the May meeting 
and Commission Member Diane Benjamin seconded.    
 
Agenda Item E:  Citizens’ Comments 
There were no citizen’s comments 
 
 
Agenda Item F:  Department Report – Forestry Supervisor, Jacob Kaiser reported on the Forestry 
Reports.  

a) Annual Pruning contract will be completed at the end of November 
b) Next Annual Pruning contract will go out to bid as early as the end of November 
c) Hazardous Tree Removal Contract will begin in November 

a. 81 trees 
d) Ash Removal and Replacement Contract will begin in December 

a. 49 trees 
e) 96% of trees pruned in October and September were pruned by a contractor 
f) 100% of trees removed and planted in October and September were done by city staff 
g) 83 trees planted in October and September 
h) 14 trees removed in October and September 
i) Year to Date totals 

a. Removed 193 trees 
b. Planted 144 trees 
c. Pruned 1832 trees 

j) Shop and Office are still in disrepair  
a. Waiting on reimbursement from FEMA  

 
 
Agenda Item G:  Council Liaison Report – Ms. Klein was absent, therefore there was no council report   
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item H:  Unfinished Business 
None 



 
 
Agenda Item I:  New Business 
 

1. None 
 

 
Agenda Item J:  Commission Comments 
 
a) Commission Member Dianne Benjamin asked Mr. Kaiser what the ordinance states regarding city trees 

and proximity to homes/structures. Mr. Kaiser stated that city trees are to be pruned a minimum of 12 
feet away from homes and structures.  

b) Commission Member Kathy Freese reported on the Ruth Park Woods project 
a. Volunteers are removing honeysuckle and wintercreeper 
b. The volunteer group has been working hard to educate the public while on the trail about 

their efforts to combat invasive species. 
c) Commission Member Dianne Benajamin commented that Crixdale avenue looks much better since 

the forestry crew spent some time in August cleaning it up.  
 

Agenda Item #12:  Adjournment 
 
Commission Vice President Aaron Bitzer motioned, and Commission Member Benjamin seconded to 
adjourn. The motion was approved unanimously at 7:02 pm.   
 
  
 
 


